
 

 

MEETING: Overview and Scrutiny Committee - 
Growing Barnsley Workstream 

DATE: Tuesday, 8 March 2022 

TIME: 2.00 pm 

VENUE: Council Chamber, Barnsley Town Hall 

 
AGENDA 
 

Growing Barnsley Workstream 
Councillors Bowler, Coates, Ennis OBE, Felton, Fielding, Lodge, Markham, McCarthy, 
Noble, Osborne, Pickering and Sumner. 
 
Administrative and Governance Issues for the Committee 
 
1   Apologies for Absence - Parent Governor Representatives   

 
To receive apologies for absence in accordance with Regulation 7 (6) of the 
Parent Governor Representatives (England) Regulations 2001. 
 

2   Declarations of Pecuniary and Non-Pecuniary Interest   
 
To invite Members of the Committee to make any declarations of pecuniary and 
non-pecuniary interest in connection with the items on this agenda. 
 

3   Minutes of the Previous Meeting  (Pages 3 - 8) 
 
To receive the minutes of the previous meeting of the Sustainable Barnsley 
Workstream held on 8th February 2022. 
 

Overview and Scrutiny Issues for the Committee 
 
Enquiries to Jane Murphy, Scrutiny Officer 
 
Email scrutiny@barnsley.gov.uk 
 
4   A Sustainable Workplace and a Healthy Workforce  (Pages 9 - 20) 

 
4a. A Sustainable Workplace and a Healthy Workforce Report 
4b.BMBC People Strategy 2021 

 

Public Document Pack

mailto:scrutiny@barnsley.gov.uk


 

 
 
To: Chair and Members of Overview and Scrutiny Committee:- 
 

Councillors Ennis OBE (Chair), Bowler, Bowser, Cain, Clarke, Coates, K. Dyson, 
Felton, Fielding, Frost, Gollick, Green, Hand-Davis, Hayward, D. Higginbottom, 
Kitching, Lodge, Lowe-Flello, Markham, McCarthy, Mitchell, Newing, Noble, 
Osborne, Pickering, Richardson, Risebury, Smith, Stowe, Sumner, Tattersall, 
Wilson, Wraith MBE and Wray together with Statutory Co-opted Member 
Ms. G Carter (Parent Governor Representative) 
 
Electronic Copies Circulated for Information 
Sarah Norman, Chief Executive 
Shokat Lal, Executive Director Core Services 
Rob Winter, Head of Internal Audit and Risk Management 
Michael Potter, Service Director, Business Improvement and Communications 
Martin McCarthy, Service Director, Governance, Members and Business Support 
Press 
 
Witnesses 
 
2pm – Item 4: 
 

 Phil Quinn, Head of Service HR & Organisation Development, Core Services, 
BMBC 

 Janet Glover, HR Advisor - Employee Wellbeing, Core Services, BMBC 

 Ben Potts, Project Manager (Workstyle), Core Services, BMBC 

 Michael Potter, Service Director Business Improvement, HR & Communications, 
Core Services BMBC 

 Shokat Lal, Executive Director Core Services, BMBC 

 Cllr Alan Gardiner, Cabinet Spokesperson Core Services, BMBC 
 

 
 



 

MEETING: Overview and Scrutiny Committee - 
Sustainable Barnsley Workstream 

DATE: Tuesday, 8 February 2022 

TIME: 2.00 pm 

VENUE: Council Chamber, Barnsley Town Hall 
 

 

1 

 
MINUTES  
 
Present  Councillors Ennis OBE (Chair), Bowler, Cain, 

K. Dyson, Felton, Fielding, Frost, Gollick, Green, 
Hayward, Lodge, Lowe-Flello, Markham, Mitchell, 
Noble, Osborne, Richardson, Risebury, Tattersall, 
Wilson and Wraith MBE.   
 

  
  
 

44 Apologies for Absence - Parent Governor Representatives  
 
No apologies/Apologies for absence were received in accordance with Regulation 
7(6) of the Parent Governor Representatives (England) Regulations 2001. 
 

45 Declarations of Pecuniary and Non-Pecuniary Interest  
 
There were no declarations of pecuniary or non-pecuniary interest. 
 

46 Minutes of the Previous Meeting  
 
The minutes of the meeting held on 11th January 2022 were received. 
 

47 Violent Crime in Barnsley  
 
The following witnesses were welcomed to the meeting: 
 
Paul Brannan, Head of Safer Barnsley, Bernaslai Homes 
Phil Hollingsworth, Service Director Safer Stronger Healthier Communities, BMBC 
James Abdy, Detective Chief Superintendent, South Yorkshire Police 
Paul Ferguson, Superintendent, South Yorkshire Police  
Ian Bailey, Violence Reduction Unit Partnership Manager, South Yorkshire Police 
Rosemary Clewer, Senior Commissioning Manager, BMBC (VIRTUAL) 
Wendy Lowder, Executive Director Adults and Communities, BMBC (VIRTUAL) 
Cllr Jenny Platts, Cabinet Spokesperson Adults and Communities, BMBC 
 
Cllr Platts introduced the report, providing the Overview & Scrutiny Committee (OSC) 
with an update on the work of the Community Safety Partnership and South 
Yorkshire Violence Reduction Unit in Barnsley towards tackling violent crime and its 
impact on the communities of Barnsley.   The report outlined the current performance 
against priorities and the governance arrangements in place.  Cllr Platts reiterated 
that Barnsley is generally a safe place to be and everything is being done to ensure 
this continues. 
 

Page 3



 
2 

In the ensuing discussion and in response to detailed questioning and challenge the 
following matters were highlighted: 
 
Operation Sceptre is a nationwide week of intensive action which focuses on raising 
awareness of knife crime and police activity to tackle the issue.  This took place in 
Barnsley and across South Yorkshire in December 2021, with targeted activity and 
operations to disrupt criminal activity and knife crime whilst raising awareness of 
knife crime and the devastating effects it can have on families and the wider 
community. Although there is heightened activity for Operation Sceptre, this works 
continues throughout the year every day, with dedicated teams that look to disrupt 
this activity, to educate and stop knife crime in our communities.  Drug taking and 
anti-social behaviour were the targets as officers from South Yorkshire Police took to 
the streets of Barnsley town centre for a proactive operation in September 2021.  
Operation Sidewinder saw the Barnsley Central Neighbourhood Policing Team out 
and about, a drugs dog.  The operation saw numerous officers providing a high-
visibility presence in the town centre and the sniffer dog hard at work locating people 
with drugs in their possession.  Operation Sentinel took place last Saturday (and 
every month) and saw officers mingling discretely amongst the general public in the 
Town Centre, looking out for vulnerable people and potential offending behaviour.    
 
It was acknowledged that although there has been a stabbing in Monk Bretton 
recently, knife crime is relatively low.  Nonetheless, trends and patterns are 
monitored and targeted pieces of work take place when necessary.  There has been 
a rise in knife crime across South Yorkshire but Barnsley is not experiencing this at 
the moment.  Support and advice is in place across schools to reduce levels of threat 
and there are a number of programmes aimed at 11-16 year olds aimed at deterring 
young people from crime.  Street Smart in Locke Parke is a good example of how 
this type of approach is successfully reaching young people in Barnsley.  This type of 
work starts in primary schools with PCSOs, linked in to Headteachers and pastoral 
staff, and increases as children get older, with a targetted approach where necessary 
and appropriate.  Some of the programmes are led by armed officers who talk to 
teenagers about the perils of weapons, drugs etc., in consultation with teaching staff.  
There is on average around 20 to 25 knife incidents per month (over the last three 
months), but this should be kept in context as there is a balance between reactive 
and proactive work – if more proactive searches take place, more knives and 
weapons will be found but this does not necessarily equate to an increase in crime.  
For example, a frequent scenario is a builder who turns up for work with a knife and 
is stopped by Police as part of a stop and search operation.  ‘Stop and search’ is a 
contentious issue with polarised views.  During the 4 months between October and 
January, 784 searches took place, with action taken in 1 in 5.  
 
Members were aware of serious anti-social behaviour incidents which had taken 
place in their wards and which seem to be ignored by Police despite there being 
video evidence of the incidents.  This leads to frustration and deters residents from 
reporting it.  It was acknowledged that video evidence is particularly valuable and 
reporting should always be followed up.  Similar experiences were reported when 
using the 111 service.  It is essential that  public confidence in reporting crime 
improves.  Problems experienced in Bank End, Worsborough, are finally coming to a 
resolution after 3 years.  Police have used a structured methodological approach to 
resolving this situation – understanding what is driving the problem, working with 

Page 4



 
3 

different agencies over a sustained period using a problem solving approach.  
Benefits take time to bear fruit and communication with residents is key.   
 
It was acknowledged that poverty and deprivation drive many crimes, which is why 
the Area Team approach was introduced four years ago.  Community Wardens were 
introduced to reinforce the feedback link back into communities, to foster 
engagement and build relationships in the community between BMBC, the Police, 
Elected Members and communities and has been working well.  Communication is 
always a challenge as lots of information is received and it is essential that it is 
followed up and fed back at the right time.  Various means of communication are 
used, including social media community alerts and newsletters.   
 
Operations are not confined to the town centre. In November more than 130 officers 
came together with partners and took part in Operation Duxford across the whole of 
Barnsley to pro-actively tackle criminality and engage with the local community.  As 
part of the operation 12 arrests were made for offences ranging from drugs and 
possession of a firearm to burglary and theft and harassment and racially aggravated 
assault; 27 stop and searches were carried out; 8 vehicles were seized under 
Operation Takeaway, knives and other dangerous weapons were taken off the 
district’s streets; 25 hotspot visits took place, support was offered at 3 pop up police 
stations and 65 members of the public were signed up to the Smart Water property 
protection scheme.  The Safer Streets Home Office initiative brought in £500k to 
spend on extra CCTV in the Dearne to target burglary and this has had a positive 
impact on other crime.  Grant funding will be made available to local authorities to 
look at combatting violence against women and girls, looking at engagement and 
education.  Problems around fear of attack at Locke Park were identified and BMBC 
are investing in better lighting to combat fear of crime.  A coordinator has been 
appointed to combat the rise in fear and mistrust of the Police from young women, 
taking elements from the national strategy and plan to develop Barnsley’s own plan.  
This is an area of focus going forward and tangible measures will be put in place to 
turn around mindsets and perceptions so that women and girls feel safe and 
supported. 
 
Drug production and increased drug use and drug related violence, particularly 
amongst young people, has been linked to organised crime locally, regionally, 
nationally and globally, and poses a significant threat to communities.  Significant 
work is taking place across the Borough to target organised criminals, along with a 
national process for understanding and mapping organised crime.  It is known that 
organised crime groups come into the UK from different global communities, but the 
problem is no worse in Barnsley than elsewhere. 
 
Barnsley has recently seen 42 positive disruptions of organised crime groups - some 
at a relatively low level and some of a more serious nature.  Drug production 
activities have been dismantled and continue to be monitored.  34 cannabis 
cultivations ('farms') were detected within the last year, with £1m of drug production 
disrupted and £0.5m of cash proceeds obtained.  South Yorkshire Police have been 
working very closely with the Home Office around serious organised crime tactics, 
which is given priority as it is seen as presenting a risk of significant harm to society.   
   
It was felt by a Member that cannabis and synthetic drugs such as ‘spice’ are 
increasingly seen as part of a ‘normal’ night out, which is a cause for concern.   

Page 5



 
4 

However, this has to be tempered against an exploration of what is ‘problem’ drug 
use and the reasons why people take drugs, which could be to drown out previous 
unresolved life experiences.  Project ADDER is a national initiative which combines 
targeted law enforcement against criminal gangs with improved treatment and 
recovery services.  Although Barnsley is not one of the pilot sites, learning from the 
initiatives will be taken on board. Levels of drug treatment and support offered are 
monitored quarterly and compared to other areas through the Safer Barnsley 
Partnership Board.   
 
The Police work closely with Berneslai Homes around eviction of problem tenants for 
problem drug use and crime.  This course of action removes the risk of harm from 
that area and broadcasts the wider message that crime doesn't work.  This is a 
continuous war and is intelligence led, with responsibility placed on everyone within 
the community, from members of the public, staff, reporting through Crimestoppers 
and local Councillors.  It was explained that anybody evicted from a property is 
entitled to housing support and advice so the Local Authority would be aware of their 
location, although evidence suggests that people tend to stay within the same 
community as they have been removed from.  It is a matter of getting the balance 
right.  The level of action taken has to be proportionate, must demonstrate that 
everything has been done to try to resolve the situation and to identify the impact on 
the surrounding community. Partial closure orders are often used rather than 
eviction.  It is important that children and young people know the potential 
implications of their behaviour and that their parents may be evicted, which can be a 
sufficient deterrent.  A dedicated officer works with private landlords to make sure 
they are aware of their responsibilities around drugs and allowing criminal activity in 
their properties.  Criminal cases are brought to court regardless of tenure, but 
responsibility for penalties lies within the judicial system.   
 
It was reported that the night time economy in the town centre effectively 'died' during 
the pandemic but when public houses etc., opened back up there was an increased 
incentive to tackle crime together using a multi-pronged approach, which included 
working with door staff, identifying potential domestic abuse situations and drug use, 
combatting under-age drinking, provision of plastic glasses and use of CCTV to make 
the town centre a safer place to be.  15 crime ’hotspots’ were identified across South 
Yorkshire and only one was in Barnsley Town Centre.  Barnsley town centre has 
successfully achieved the Purple Flag award for the third consecutive year.   Lots of 
new venues are opening within the Town Centre but assurances were given that 
there are enough resources to police this effectively.  Every weekend uniformed 
officers from the police and other services are on patrol and are using tracking 
devices and other technology to ensure this is effective. Designing out crime was part 
of the town centre planning, which includes anti-terrorism features.  
  
Members have themselves been subject to physical attacks and verbal abuse.  
Barnsley launched its No Place For Hate campaign in July 2021, which aims to 
stamp out online abuse in the hope that it can make social media a more friendly 
place and to eradicate hate speech from social media platforms.  Hate crime includes 
verbal abuse, which can quickly escalate to violence.  Hate crimes are scrutinised 
through the neighbourhood policing teams when reported and proactive work in 
schools takes place to encourage reporting.  Regular meetings with the Iman take 
place at the Mosque, which has been subject to attacks in the past.  A new 
Communications Manager is looking at ways of addressing hate crime and violent 

Page 6



 
5 

crime (including domestic abuse) using social media and other means. Members of 
the LGBT+ community and minority groups must be encouraged and empowered to 
report hate crime.  Cruelty towards animals will always be thoroughly investigated 
and perpetrators prosecuted. 
 
Members were encouraged to be the ‘eyes and ears’ within their communities and to 
encourage residents to be vigilant and always report suspicions to the police, as this 
can help to combat crime and make everyone feel safe.   
  
 
    
 

 
RESOLVED that  
 

(i) Witnesses be thanked for their attendance and contribution and for their hard 
work within the communities of Barnsley;  

(ii) Performance information around knife crimes and levels of drug treatment and 
support should be provided to the Committee; and  

(iii) Elected Members should continue to encourage communities to report 
suspicious activity.              

 
 
 
 
 
 

------------------------------------------ 
Chair 

Page 7



This page is intentionally left blank



1 

 

Item 4a 
 

 
Report of the Executive Director Core Services 

to the Overview and Scrutiny Committee 
(OSC) on 8th March 2022 

 
A Sustainable Workplace & Healthy Workforce 

 
 
1.0 Introduction 

 
1.1 The purpose of this report is to inform the Overview and Scrutiny Committee of the initiatives 

developed to support the emotional and physical wellbeing of employees, particularly during the 
pandemic. It includes how different ways of working will help to sustain the organisation and 
drive it towards 2030, as well as helping to support our workforce in the process. It also provides 
an update on the progress the organisation is making in the return to the workplace, working to 
a new hybrid model and how the council can incorporate this to encourage green and active 
travel.  
 

1.2 Item 4b (attached) is the BMBC Our People Strategy, which summaries the key themes and 
priorities of the strategy for 2022-2025. 
 

2.0 Background  

2.1  Barnsley Metropolitan Borough Council (BMBC) is committed to creating an inclusive 
environment for all employees, promoting health and wellbeing, and supporting employees who 
experience health difficulties. In February 2020 a health and wellbeing survey was conducted 
across the council. The aim of the survey was to develop an understanding of the current health 
and wellbeing of BMBC employees. It was envisaged that this would inform the development of 
an Employee Health and Wellbeing Strategy, ensure that activities and interventions are 
designed to meet employee needs and provide a baseline to measure their impact. This survey 
would also form part of the submission for the South Yorkshire Bewell@work Award.  

2.2.  The survey was designed and implemented by a working group of colleagues across BMBC, 
including Human Resources, Business Intelligence, Public Health, Organisational & Workforce 
Development, Communications, and the Wellbeing Stakeholder Group. The survey covered a 
range of health topics and incorporated validated questions from national survey tools where 
possible. It was piloted at the Public Health Forum in December 2019 and amended in response 
to additional feedback from the Wellbeing Stakeholder Group and the Organisational 
Development Board. The survey was promoted primarily for digital completion; however, a paper 
format was available for non-networked employees without access to a digital device. The 
survey was open for completion between February 10th and March 6th, 2020. 

2.3  In March 2020 the organisation was faced with the Covid-19 pandemic. Due to Covid-19 an 
initial pulse survey was undertaken in May 2020 with a further pulse survey in October 2020 to 
see what impact Covid-19 was having on the workforce. From each of the surveys the Wellbeing 
Stakeholder Group developed and later updated an action plan to address the needs of the 
organisation. 

 
2.4 The Health and Wellbeing survey was completed in February/March 2020 by a total of 2114 

employees which equates to a 66% response rate. The outcome of this survey highlighted:- 
 

Page 9

Item 4



2 

 

 In total, 58% of the survey respondents described their current mental health as Very 
Good/Good and 10.7% described their current mental health as Poor/Very Poor. Among 
those who reported Poor/Very Poor mental health, there were more women (70%) than men 
(30%) which mirrors the gender split within the council.  

 Employees were asked to rate four areas of personal wellbeing using the Office of National 
Statistics (ONS) measures. Council-wide scores for life satisfaction, happiness and feeling 
that things you do in life are worthwhile were all slightly lower among BMBC employees than 
UK and Barnsley averages. Almost half of the workforce (46%) indicated a level of anxiety 
between ‘Medium’ and ‘Very High’. This may account for the council average anxiety score 
being noticeably higher than the Barnsley and UK averages. More women than men reported 
having ‘Very High’ anxiety levels (9.9% versus 5.3%). 

 In total, 10% of survey respondents stated they had missed a day off work through anxiety, 
depression or stress during 2019. This equates to 219 employees. There was no variation 
between men and women in the data. However, employees aged 21-30 had a slightly higher 
percentage as compared to the overall total (14.4%) and the 61-70 age-group the lowest 
(4.5%). 

 When asked about what they would do if they were to suffer from poor mental health 
symptoms, 63% of respondents stated they would share this with someone outside of the 
workplace such as friends or family. A total of 25.3% would share this with their manager, 
and 1.8% would discuss it with Human Resources. In total, 34% of respondents stated they 
would say nothing and carry on as usual, and this was predominately women (66%). 

 Of the 516 survey respondents who indicated they were managers, only 9 (1.7%) indicated 
that they are ‘Not confident at all’ in discussing or providing support for mental health with 
their employees. In total, 80.4% of managers reported they were either ‘Quite Confident’ or 
‘Very Confident’ in discussing or providing support for mental health with their employees. 

 There was relatively low awareness of the availability of activities and information to support 
health and wellbeing among employees; 16.4% reported that they were not aware of any at 
all. In total, 38.7% were aware of the Well@work website, 57.0% were aware of wellbeing 
courses on our internal learning platform POD, 36.0% were aware of mental health courses 
and 47.8% knew about counselling. 

 Only 9.8% of respondents felt that there should not be any information or help to access 
employee health promoting activities. There was strong support for the provision of 
information and activities to address mental health and stress (71.3%). 

2.5 The first pulse survey ran in May 2020 was completed by 2,290 employees which equates to a 
71% response rate. The key findings of this survey were:-  

 

 55% of employees reported that they love/like working from home.  

 81% of employees working from home reported that they are very satisfied/satisfied with the 
support received.   

 Employees are experiencing some benefits of homeworking, with 73% indicating that they 
are enjoying not having to commute. 

 79% of employees said they are very satisfied/satisfied with the information provided in the 
daily employee update and information provided on the intranet.   

 43% of employees reported that their caring responsibilities have increased in light of Covid-
19 and it is clear from comments made by employees that a large proportion of employees 
are finding the balance of working from home and juggling childcare/caring responsibilities 
very challenging.    

 40% of employees reported an increase in anxiety levels.   

 19% of employees reported increased feelings of depression.   

 Other wellbeing changes reported by employees include sleeping less (33%) and feeling 
lonely (25%). 

 21% of employees working on the frontline indicated that they feel unsafe/very unsafe.  From 
the comments made by employees their main concerns were in relation to feeling unsafe 

Page 10



3 

 

taking public transport to work, challenges around the application of social distancing 
measures including a lack of measures observed by the public or that these are difficult to 
maintain in role, a lack of communication from managers regarding wellbeing and having 
vulnerable family members at home and the risks of infecting family. 

 15% of those working on the front line indicated that they are dissatisfied/very dissatisfied 
with the support received.  These results compared less favourably to those of employees 
who are working from home at 6%.  

 
2.6 The second pulse survey ran in October 2020 was completed by 2,054 employees which 

equates to a 65% response rate. The key findings of the second pulse survey were:- 
 

 71% of employees reported that they love/like working from home, this has increased since 
May. 80% of employees working from home reported that they are very satisfied/satisfied 
with the support received.  

 19% of employees are working in the community on the front line, 66% of those were very 

satisfied/satisfied with the support received. 

 62% of employees on the front line indicated that they feel very safe/quite safe. 

 24% indicated that they feel quite unsafe/very unsafe, the major change can be seen in the 

10% increase in front line workers feeling very unsafe largely due to lack of appropriate 

Personal Protective Equipment (PPE) and customers and members of the public not social 

distancing. 

 11% of employees were working from a council building and 66% of those were very 

satisfied/satisfied with the support received. 

 Overall wellbeing remained similar to that reported in May, with 78% of employees stating 

that they were in good/very good health. 

 27% of employees reported feeling more anxious, a reduction of 13% compared to the May 

survey. 

 17% of employees reported feeling more depressed compared to 19% in the May survey. 

 50% of employees saw an increase in caring responsibilities and 27% saw a reduction. 

Overall numbers of employees with caring responsibilities remained static. 

 40% of employees reported that their household income has increased and 51% reported 

that it has stayed the same, with 19% of employees being worried about their current financial 

situation.  

 58% of employees said their workload has increased, the main reasons were Covid-19 (36%) 

and employee shortages (33%). 

 35% of employees stated that their workload was always too much, with 9% of employees 

stating that they “never” discussed their workloads with their manager due to lack of time.   

 82% of employees said that they are most likely to read the latest information in the Keep 

Barnsley Moving Bulletin and 49% from organisational emails, 48% from the intranet. 

3.0 Current Position 
 
3.1  As a result of the surveys undertaken, the council have put various initiatives in place to address 

the findings and support employees which include:- 
 

 Procurement of an Employee Assistance Programme (EAP) - all employees and their 
immediate family have access to the EAP for self-care support and information on a wide 
range of issues such as childcare support, domestic abuse, legal information, relationship 
advice, alcohol or drugs issues and financial information. This is a 24/7 helpline.  

 There is also an App employees can download (‘My Healthy Advantage’), which also has an 
online and video chat facility.  All employees also received a leaflet in the post, promoting 

Page 11



4 

 

the service with a handy push out card containing contact information for easy access. It also 
offers support for managers to deal with mental health/wellbeing issues of employees.  

 Mental Health Awareness Training – delivered virtually by Mental Health First Aid (MHFA) 
England on POD for all employees to recognise the signs and symptoms and how to deal 
with stress. A flowchart was also developed to help managers to have discussions and 
support their employees with mental health issues.  

 Mental Health First Aiders – 48 employees have been trained to be Mental Health First 
Aiders across the Council, to support employees in the workplace. The list of contacts is 
promoted via the online Employee Hub, with further plans for promotion as employees return 
to the workplace. 

 Bulletin / Straight Talk – regular employee wellbeing features have been included in the 
employee bulletin which have covered different wellbeing topics and specific interventions 
and signposted to support e.g. looking after your mental health, working from home 
reminders about taking breaks, undertaking Digital Screen Equipment (DSE) checks, 
keeping in touch with colleagues, childcare support, encouraging physical activity, H&S 
aspects of returning to the workplace and encouraging employees to take annual leave to 
rest and recuperate.  

 E-learning courses available on the internal learning platform POD on mental 
health awareness, personal resilience, email stress, and Managing and Supporting 
Wellbeing in the workplace for managers  are available for employees / managers to 
complete at a time and place convenient to them.  

 Well@work intranet site – this has been developed in house and includes a host of 
wellbeing support including a section specifically on mental health.  

 Counselling – support is already available through the Occupational Health (OH) Service for 
employees to self-refer for counselling. This provision has been extended to allow managers 
to refer employees to OH from day one of an absence if it is related to mental health. 

 One to one checklist – a template for managers has been developed to adopt when carrying 
out 1-2-1 meetings with employees. This encourages discussions about wellbeing and 
workloads and includes various links, including to a Wellness Action Plans (WAP) template. 
Wellness Action Plans are an easy, practical way of helping employees to support their own 
mental health at work and help managers to support the mental health of their team 
members.    

 Remote working toolkit – developed and made available to both managers and employees 
on POD. This provided advice and support to employees who were not used to working from 
home and assisted managers in how to effectively manage employees working remotely. 

 Smart Working Masterclasses – these were provided online to both managers and 
employees. The masterclasses gave practical help, advice, tools and techniques to help 
employees stay well and work effectively from home.  

 Commitment to Culture Change – developed a Commitment to Culture Change document 
which encourages employees to effectively manage their diaries to include free time, regular 
screen breaks, reminds them of digital etiquette, how to manage emails, and include some 
personal development time.  This was promoted to encourage, where possible, employees 
to rest and recharge and consider how to work differently and encourage good working 
practice.  

 Keeping active – promoted that being active is good for your physical and mental health. In 
conjunction with colleagues in Public Health a website was developed and made available 
which shows activities to get involved in around the Borough. 

 Going home / switching off checklist - developed and implemented a going home checklist 
poster which is displayed in all council buildings and a switching off checklist was published 
as a screensaver for employees working from home, to remind them about the importance 
of switching off from work at the end of the day.  

 BMBC Sleep Toolkit – developed by Public Health colleagues and available on the 
Well@work website and has been promoted to employees. 

Page 12

https://homel.barnsley.gov.uk/WellatWork/Pages/Healthy-Mind.aspx


5 

 

 Free flu vaccinations – every year the Public Health Team offer a free vaccination 
programme in the workplace for front line employees. Since Covid-19 all other employees 
have had the option to claim back the cost of getting a flu jab.  

 Employee Support forum – set up a network to support employees who are struggling with 
personal issues that are affecting them at work, such as caring responsibilities and going 
through the menopause. 

 Menopause awareness raising and e-learning course – held a virtual awareness session 
for all employees to encourage conversations to take place around the menopause. A short 
e-learning course was also developed which is available on the internal learning platform 
POD which provides an overview of what menopause is, symptoms, real life stories and how 
employees can support a colleague who may be going through the menopause at home or 
at work. 

 
Employee Absence 
 

3.2 BMBC sickness rate for 2020/21 was an average of 7.72 FTE days absence per employee. In     
the previous year (2019/20) this was 7.99 and 2018/19 was 8.54. A more recent focus on 
managing employee absence and facilitating an early return to work was helping to reduce the 
council’s sickness rate year on year. However, it is predicted that this is likely to rise for 2021/22, 
primarily due to the pandemic. This is reflected nationally. The main reasons for absence year 
on year are mental health related absence such as anxiety, depression, stress. For 2020/21 and 
2021/2022 this has been closely followed by infectious disease (Covid-19) and the third highest 
reason for absence is musculoskeletal issues.  

 
Annual leave 

 
3.3  Due to the strict lockdown rules at the beginning of the Covid-19 pandemic, there were reports 

that employees were reluctant to take and book annual leave during the 2020/21 leave year. 
During 2020/21 and 2021/22 HR/Payroll produced reports for directorates on outstanding annual 
leave. Annual leave usage was also monitored via regular progress reports to SMT. 
Communications were also sent out via the employee bulletins reminding employees of the 
importance of taking a break from work and managers were requested to ensure they were 
discussing annual leave and time off with their employees regularly. It was agreed that 
employees could carry forward up to ten days’ annual leave from 2020/21, due to workload 
prioritisations in support of resident services. This will revert to a maximum of five days for the 
leave year 2021/22, except in exceptional circumstances.  

 
Bewell@work Award 

 
3.4  The council submitted an application for the South Yorkshire ‘Bewell@work’ Workplace Health 

Award in 2021 and the council was awarded silver status. The award provides a framework for 
the organisation to work towards to build good practice in workplace health and wellbeing.  The 
surveys that were previously undertaken and the initiatives that have been put in place 
subsequently were given consideration and discussions took place with focus groups to ensure 
these were embedded within the council. The assessment concluded that the council promotes 
a healthy workplace and has considerable benefits available to support our employees’ health 
and wellbeing. The council is working towards achieving gold status in 2022/23. 
 
Wellbeing Stakeholder Group 

 
3.5 The Wellbeing Stakeholder group continues to meet bi-monthly to progress their workplan and 

regularly reports developments to the Organisation Development (OD) Board. A financial 
wellbeing task and finish group was set up to look at what support is available for employees 
who may be struggling with their finances as this can also have an impact on mental health. So 
far, a dedicated money matters page has been set up on the Well@work website to signpost 

Page 13



6 

 

employees for support and an action plan has been developed to look at various initiatives such 
as a shared cost AVC (additional voluntary contribution), an employee benefits platform and a 
salary sacrifice scheme for debt consolidation / savings scheme.   

 
Smart Working Programme 

 
3.6 The Smart Working Programme is currently preparing to launch its next phase in April 2022 as 

the council moves to its new hybrid working model, ‘Barnsley is our Office’. Change 
management support and guidance is being prepared to help employees transition through the 
next stage of the pandemic and employees have been provided with a new ‘touch down’ 
workspace on Level 1 of Westgate where they will be able to meet, collaborate and have the 
important face to face contact they require to interact and work effectively as part of a revitalised 
workplace experience.  

 
3.7 The council’s bases in the localities are also being reviewed by the Smart Working programme 

team and several stakeholder engagement sessions have been held. Key proposals for 
improvements in workplace environments are being developed and delivered as a result of this 
work during the coming months. 

 
4.0 Future Plans & Challenges 

 
4.1 The council are working towards achieving the gold status of the Bewell@work award. To 

achieve this, the council needs to develop a mental health policy, look at developing disability 
forums / groups within the council and have an active travel or green travel plan which 
encourages the reduction of the organisations carbon footprint. An active travel plan will be 
introduced in 2022/23, linking to the sustainability agenda and promoting the range of greener 
travel solutions to employees.  

4.2  The council has developed a People Strategy for 2022-2025 (see item 4b) which prioritises the 
focus on employee health and wellbeing. This is a strategy for all staff. It has been designed to 
support employees to be the best they can be and to help make sure the council are in the best 
place possible to deliver on Barnsley’s 2030 ambitions and the Council Plan priorities. It will also 
help ensure the organisation is modern, inclusive, efficient, and a high performing council.  

The People Strategy has three key themes: 

 Effective leadership, values and culture. 
 Maximising organisational capacity and capability. 
 Supporting colleagues to have a great employee experience. 

4.3 The council continues to be assessed as part of the Investors in People (IiP) Award for which it 
has retained gold status. Health and wellbeing feature strongly in this assessment. The 
organisation regularly undertakes an employee survey which includes questions addressing 
employee health and wellbeing. A full health needs assessment of the council may be 
undertaken again in 2022/23.  

 
4.4  The council is currently investigating the need for trauma support to be made available across 

the organisation and what this need might look like. A health needs assessment is being 
undertaken to determine what the organisational demand might be.   

 
4.5  Covid-19 has been a big challenge for all services, but employees regularly demonstrate their 

resilience and the council has put in place effective support mechanisms and options for 
employees through this difficult time. These initiatives will remain in place to support employees 
going forward. The wellbeing stakeholder group, which includes the Smart Working Project 

Page 14



7 

 

Manager, will continue to consider and address any future needs that may arise, including as a 
result of feedback from employees.   

 
4.6  The Smart Working Programme will monitor and review the performance and impact of the new 

hybrid working model and workspaces throughout 2022/23 and ensure that the workstreams 
delivered within each theme continue to meet the requirements set out in our People, Asset and 
Sustainable Energy Action Plans (SEAPS).  

 
4.7 Following the pandemic all organisations are having to adapt at speed and there is currently no 

established consensus for the best way to organise work and workplaces in a post-Covid-19 
society. With that in mind, the next period will very much be one of testing what works and what 
doesn’t and amending plans and proposals, accordingly, maintaining agility in delivering 
effective services for residents and the borough. 

4.8  There is also the wider impact Covid-19 may have on other health and wellbeing issues that 

may affect employees long term, such as delays in cancer screening and the early diagnosis of 

various illnesses, the reported longer waiting lists for operations / treatment in the NHS and 

potential increase in domestic violence during this time. The council also needs to monitor and 

ensure the new hybrid model does not lead to an increase in musculoskeletal issues.   

4.9 The council will consider reintroducing our Know Your Numbers Campaign where employees 

are encouraged to come forward to have their blood pressure, cholesterol, BMI and diabetes 

levels checked. This is run by the in-house occupational health team and helps to identify any 

hidden issues that could lead to heart disease, diabetes, or other chronic diseases.  

4.10 As part of the council’s Transport Strategy and the Barnsley 2030 plan, the organisation is also 

working towards Climate Zero45, reducing emissions and encouraging employees to use more 

sustainable modes of travel.  

4.11  The transport team are currently considering greener travel plans, with associated targets and 

will be conducting a survey shortly which will help contribute towards this plan. The council wants 

to encourage employees to try for at least one day per week to be active travel.   

4.12  To encourage active travel, currently there is a cycle to work scheme available to employees. 

Other schemes will also be considered, such as discounted bus passes, enhance the existing 

cycle to work scheme, have more cycles (electric bikes) available for employees and increase 

the amount of cycle storage available around council buildings. 

4.13  There is also have a car lease scheme where the purchase of electric / hybrid vehicles will 

continue to be promoted. There are electric charging points available in the main carparks within 

the borough. 

4.14  There are also a range of discounts in relation to health benefits in the Just4you benefits scheme 

which is available to all employees and includes discounted membership for local gyms and 

access to various Health Care plans.  

5.0  Invited Witnesses 
 
5.1 The following witnesses have been invited to today’s meeting to answer questions from the 

committee:- 
 

 Phil Quinn, Head of Service HR & Organisation Development, Core Services, BMBC 

Page 15



8 

 

 Janet Glover, HR Advisor - Employee Wellbeing, Core Services, BMBC 

 Ben Potts, Project Manager (Workstyle), Core Services, BMBC 

 Michael Potter, Service Director Business Improvement, HR & Communications, Core 
Services BMBC 

 Shokat Lal, Executive Director Core Services, BMBC 

 Cllr Alan Gardiner, Cabinet Spokesperson Core Services, BMBC 
 

6.0 Possible Areas for Investigation 
 
6.1 Members may want to ask questions around the following areas:- 
 

 Which areas of performance are you most pleased with, what could be better? 
 

 What areas are you most concerned about and why? 
 

 How will you monitor and evaluate the Smart Working programme? 
 

 What do you consider to be the key to managing change? 
 

 How would you describe the culture of the organisation?  How do you think employees would 
describe the culture of the organisation? 

 

 In your opinion, are messages being delivered and implemented effectively and equitably across 
all teams within the organisation? 

 

 Does the membership of the Wellbeing Stakeholder Group proportionately represent the 
demographics of the workforce as a whole? 

 

 How have you responded to the council’s average anxiety score being noticeably higher than 
the Barnsley and UK averages? 

 

 How are you supporting employees with increased workloads to prevent burnout? 
 

 When do you expect the mental health policy to be implemented and how will employees 
suffering from mental health related issues be involved in the formulation of the policy? 

 

 How do you ensure that employees feel valued? 
 

 How will you ensure that the organisational structure is effective and employees have the skills 
and abilities to support the council’s ambitions for 2030? 

 

 What does success look like, and how will you know whether you have achieved it?  
 

 What evidence do you have to show that initiatives are having a positive impact upon employee 
wellbeing? 

 

 What examples of best practice have been used to develop strategies, policies and initiatives? 
 

 Are there sufficient resources to achieve the priorities set out in the People Strategy? 
 

 What can members do to support employee wellbeing? 
 
 
 
 
 
7.0 Background Papers and Useful Links 
 
7.1 Item 4b (attached) BMBC People Strategy  

Page 16



9 

 

 
8.0 Glossary 
 

AVC  Additional Voluntary Contribution  
DSE    Digital Screen Equipment 
EAP   Employee Assistance Programme 
HNA    Health Needs Assessment  
IIP    Investors in People 
MHFA  Mental Health First Aid (England) 
OH  Occupational Health 
POD   Personal On-line Development Platform 

 SEAPS  Sustainable Energy Action Plans 
WAP   Wellness Action Plans  
 
 
 

9.0 Officer Contact 
 
Jane Murphy, Scrutiny@barnsley.gov.uk 
1st March 2022 

Page 17

mailto:Scrutiny@barnsley.gov.uk


This page is intentionally left blank



Barnsley - the place of possibilities

Our People Strategy 2022 - 2025
Introduction
Our Council Plan 2021 – 2024 sets out how we as a council will support the achievement  
of the vision for the borough through four priorities: Healthy Barnsley, Learning 
Barnsley, Growing Barnsley and Sustainable Barnsley. Our final priority, Enabling 
Barnsley, is driven by our ambition to be even better; a modern, inclusive, efficient, 
productive and high-performing council.  

The People Strategy supports the delivery of both the Council Plan 2021-2024 and Barnsley’s 

2030 ambitions. We know the greatest asset the council has is you, our people, who make such  

a positive difference to the quality of residents’ lives, enabling our communities to be even 

better connected and to help themselves and each other. The People Strategy demonstrates 

the value we place on our people, their energy, ideas, and innovation, with many ways of 

involving and collaborating with colleagues in its implementation and delivery. 

How we’ll monitor progress
We’ll monitor progress and the difference we’re making 

through a variety of ways, such as performance measures, 

outcomes and findings from assessments and reviews. 

In addition, regular progress reports will be provided to 

the Organisation Development Board who will oversee the 

delivery of the outcomes outlined within this strategy.

Keeping up to date and  
getting involved
We’ll keep you up to date on progress and key actions 

will be communicated to you through our engagement 

processes, including Sarah’s blog, our weekly newsletter 

and the latest news on the intranet. 

There are many ways to get involved in providing your 

feedback, insight, and ideas through the Let’s talk sessions 

and Talkabouts.

Our Values

Our Design Principles

Active and connected communities 

Customer focused  

New delivery models

Digital 

Data and intelligence  

Smart working 

Workforce planning

Barnsley - the place of possibilities

Our Key Enabling Strategies

People Strategy 			   Digital Barnsley 				    Communications and Marketing Strategy	

Commercial Strategy 		  Medium Term Financial Strategy  	 Customer Experience   			 

					     Response, Recovery and Renewal

P
age 19

JaneMu
Text Box
Item 4b



		 				 

Summary of key 
themes

Effective leadership, values and culture

We work together towards achieving our vision in line with our values. We have  
leaders at every level that contribute to delivering our priorities and support and 
champion our aim for a more diverse organisation and inclusive culture.  To achieve 
this, we will support you to:

•	 Understand our vision for the future and how you add value and contribute to 	

•	 Get it right the first time and deliver excellent customer service.

•	 Be resilient, and innovative, encouraging others to lead the way.

•	 Develop your commercial skills to ensure the council’s financial resources are  

	 used efficiently.

•	 Champion our aim for a more diverse council and inclusive culture.

How you can get involved:

•	 Work towards our new vision, values, priorities, and ways of working.

•	 Help with the review and refresh of our values and behaviours and promote them.

•	 Work together to improve services of our customers.

•	 Use feedback to identify and influence changes and improvements to the way we do things. 

•	 Champion equality and diversity, being compassionate, supporting others and 		

	 treating them with respect.

•	 Use council resources efficiently and identify opportunities to make savings or  

	 increase income. 

•	 Make sure that you keep up to date through the employee engagement and 		

	 communications channels available.

Maximising organisational capacity and capability

We have effective and efficient solutions, plans, frameworks and resources in place  

to support the delivery of the priorities set out in our Council Plan. To achieve this,  

we will support you to: 

•	 Have access to clear information and guidance at any time, from any location or 		

	 device to help you in your role to deliver our priorities.

•	 Embed an effective approach to workforce and succession planning to help drive 	

	 performance.

•	 Identify and effectively manage any risks associated with the work you do.

•	 Improve your digital skills to better connect with our customers, communities and 	

	 partners.

•	 Prepare for and respond to emergency situations when they happen. 

How you can get involved:

•	 Use your knowledge and skills to support and develop employees undertaking 		

	 work placements, apprenticeships and graduate schemes.

•	 Identify risks and report these in line with the relevant procedures.

•	 Continually develop and improve your digital skills through the Digital Skills site. 		

	 and share your knowledge and skills with others.

•	 Be prepared to provide support to respond to emergency situations.

Employee Experience
We are an inclusive organisation where wellbeing and a people-centred culture keeps 
employees healthy, safe, engaged, motivated and productive. To achieve this, we will 
support you to:

•	 Work towards our recovery from the COVID-19 pandemic.

•	 Know what’s going on, what we’re working to achieve and how you can get involved, 		
	 influence changes and improvements being made.

•	 Understand the employee charter which will set out what you can expect as an  
	 employee of the council and what the council expects of you.

•	 Feel safe, respected and valued.

•	 Lead healthy and fulfilling lives, with a key focus on mental wellbeing.

•	 Gain the skills you need for your professional development.

•	 Understand what employee benefits are available and how to access them.

How you can get involved:

•	 Embrace the concept of ‘Barnsley is our office’ and new ways of working.

•	 Provide your feedback and ideas on how we can make changes and improve the way	
	 we do things.

•	 Get involved in employee networks. 

•	 Recognise and celebrate good performance through Thank You Thursday’s, Shout-outs 	

	 and long service awards.

•	 Improve your physical and mental health and wellbeing.

•	 Take an active role in your learning and development, such as apprenticeship 		
	 opportunities where these are available.

Barnsley - the place of possibilities

Theme

3
Theme

1
Theme

2

The People Strategy builds on the progress 
we have already made to ensure we:

•	 Have effective and compassionate leadership that encourages and enables innovation and creativity. 
•	 Work together as an inclusive council that is representative of the communities we serve. 
•	 Move to new ways of working through a Smart Working approach, using the principle that ‘Barnsley is our office’. 
•	 Continue to support you to improve your health and wellbeing. 
•	 Hear from you about what works well and what doesn’t. 
•	 Listen to your ideas and get you involved in improvements that make a difference.

P
age 20


	Agenda
	3 Minutes of the Previous Meeting
	4 A Sustainable Workplace and a Healthy Workforce
	Item 4b BMBC People Strategy 2021 Final




